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1. Name of Proberty 

historic name Administration Buildina 

other namekite number Academic Hall; Northwest Missouri State University Administration Buildinq 
- --- - A - *  - 

2. Location 

street & town 800 University Drive N/A not for publication 

city or town Maryville N/A vicinity 

state Missour~ code MO county Nodaway code 147 rip code 64468 

- - -- - - T  - 7  -*,, --,-- c,-*- 1 -  

3. StatelFederal Agency CertMcation 

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, I hereby certify that this [ql nomination 
request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the Nat~onal Register 

of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the 
property meets does not meet the National Reoister criteria. I recommend that this propew be considered significant . .  - 

Slgnature of certrfy~ng officialflitle Mark A. M~leslDeputy SHPO Date 

esources 

In My opinion, the property meets does not meet the Nat~onal Register criteria. ( See 
comments.) 

Signature of certifying officialrritle Date 

State or Federal agency and bureau Lr 
4. Natlonal Park Service CertMcatlon 
I hereby CFP fv t h ~ t  I -  1.r; FPVV IS 

entered in the National Register. 
See continuation sheet. 

determined eligible for the 
National Rsg~ster 

See continuation sheet. 
determ~ned no! eligible for the 

National Reaistsr. 
removed from !he National 

Register. 
other, (explain.) 

-. 

S~gnature of the Keeper Date of Action 



 Administration Building Nodaway County, MO  
Name of Property County and State 
 
5.  Classification 
Ownership of Property                  Category of Property Number of Resources within Property 
(check as many boxes as apply)                    (check only one box)                        (Do not include previously listed resources in the count.) 

    

                                             Contributing             Noncontributing

 private  building(s) 1        buildings 

 public-local  district             sites 

 public-State  site              structures 

 public-Federal  structure       3 objects 

  object 1 3 Total 

   

 
Name of related multiple property listing   Number of contributing resources previously listed 
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)  in the National Register 
 
N/A N/A 
         
6.   Function or Use 
Historic Function Current Function 
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions)   
 
  EDUCATION/college EDUCATION/college 

               
               
             
                

             

             

             

   

7.   Description 
Architectural Classification Materials 
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enter categories from instructions) 
 
 LATE 19TH & 20TH CENTURY REVIVALS  foundation CONCRETE 
                  Late Gothic Revival walls BRICK 
                  Collegiate Gothic  STONE / LIMESTONE 
       roof SLATE 
       other       
 

Narrative Description 
(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.) 

 See continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 7 

 



 Administration Building Nodaway County, MO  
Name of Property County and State 
 
8.   Statement of Significance 
Applicable National Register Criteria Areas of Significance 
 (Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property (enter categories from instructions)  
for National Register listing.) 
 

 A Property is associated with events that have made EDUCATION 
        a significant contribution to the broad patterns of   
        our history.       
 

 B Property is associated with the lives of persons       
         significant in our past. 
        

 C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics 
         of a type, period, or method of construction or       
         represents the work of a master, or possesses 
         high artistic values, or represents a significant and       
        distinguishable entity whose components lack 
        individual distinction.       
 

 D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, Period of Significance 
        information important in prehistory or history. 1910 to 1959 
  
Criteria Considerations       
(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.) 
  Significant Dates 
Property is: N/A 
 

 A owned by a religious institution or used for       
  religious purposes.  

   Significant Persons 
 B removed from its original location. (Complete if Criterion B is marked above) 

  N/A 
 C a birthplace or grave.  

  Cultural Affiliation 
 D a cemetery. N/A 

 
 E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.       

 
 F a commemorative property. Architect/Builder 

  Felt, J. H. and Co. 
 G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance 

         within the past 50 years. Marshall, D.E. and Co. 
                                                                                                                   Sparks, J.H. and Co. 
Narrative Statement of Significance 
(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.) 
 See continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 8 
9. Major Bibliographical References 
Bibliography 
(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets. 
 
Previous documentation on file (NPS): Primary location of additional data:   
   
  preliminary determination of individual listing (36  State Historic Preservation Office 
        CFR 67) has been requested  Other State agency 
  previously listed in the National Register  Federal agency 
  previously determined eligible by the National  Local government 

                Register  University 
   designated a National Historic Landmark  Other Name of repository: 

  recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey 
       #         Northwest Missouri State University      
   recorded by Historic American Engineering 
       Record #        
   See continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 9 



Administration Building Nodaway County, MO 
Name of Property County and State 
 
10.  Geographical Data 
 
Acreage of Property    3.23 AC.  
 
UTM References 
(Place additional boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.) 
 
1 1/5      3/4/0/0/4/4  4/4/6/8/6/7/6 2  /        / / / / /    / / / / / / 
   Zone     Easting            Northing          Zone    Easting            Northing 
    
3  /        / / / / /    / / / / / /  4  /        / / / / /    / / / / / / 
   Zone     Easting            Northing                    Zone    Easting            Northing 
 
Verbal Boundary Description 
(Describe the boundaries of the property.) 
See Continuation Sheet 
 
Property Tax No. N/A 
 
Boundary Justification 
(Explain why the boundaries were selected.)  
See Continuation Sheet 
 See continuation sheet(s) for Section No. 10 
11. Form Prepared By  
  
name/title      Jason Williamson 

organization        date May 2010 

street & number 1328 W. Crestview Dr. telephone  402-720-1773 

city or town    Maryville state  MO zip code  64468 

Additional Documentation 
Submit the following items with the completed form: 
 
Continuation Sheets 
Maps A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location. 

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. 
Photographs: Representative black and white photographs of the property. 
Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items) 
  
Property Owner 
name/title      Northwest Missouri State University 

street & number 800 University Drive telephone        

city or town    Maryville state   MO zip code  64468 

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate 
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain a 
benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.). 
 
Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing 
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect of 
this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of 
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503. 
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Summary 
 
 The Administration Building on the campus of Northwest Missouri State University, 
Maryville, Nodaway County, Missouri is a four-story brick building with limestone and terra 
cotta accents that has served the school since 1910. With its four towers capped by stone 
battlements rising above the center of the building, which resembles a Gothic castle gatehouse, 
the Administration Building exemplifies the Tudor Gothic or Collegiate Gothic style1.  The 
juxtaposition of color and texture by the use of stone in the belt course, quoins, and window 
headers and sills adds to the decorative motif.  The exterior of the Administration Building 
remains largely unchanged since its completion in 1910, excepting the loss of a rear theater wing 
destroyed by a fire in 1979.  The interior of the building has gone through many renovations to 
accommodate the changing role of the building on the campus, but retains its historic central 
corridor and some original finishes.  The building resides on a northeast, southwest line east of 
University Drive at the center of campus, surrounded by trees, sidewalks, parking lots, and other 
University buildings.  Although the Administration building has faced near destruction and the 
campus has changed considerably over the last century, the one hundred thousand square-foot 
building remains the center-piece of a vibrant university. 
 
 

Elaboration 
 
Site 
 
 The Administration Building is constructed on a northeast southwest line on the campus 
of Northwest Missouri State University.  The building is primarily built in the Southeast Quarter 
of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter, on the Miller tract of property purchased by 
the Fifth District Normal School in 1906.  Part of the building is also on the adjacent property of 
the Yetter tract purchased by the Normal at the same time.  Originally, a birch tree lined road ran 
from Fourth Street through the former nursery of the Gaunt tract to a parking area directly in 
front of the building.  Currently, the Administration Building lies east of University Drive in the 
middle of the campus, which is a is a State Arboretum, with over one hundred twenty-five 
species of trees represented in the over thirteen hundred trees on campus.  The Administration 
Building historically housed all classrooms and administrative offices.  The student body grew 
and the number of programs increased, other buildings were added to the campus.  The 
Administration Building remained at the center of campus and is the symbol the University.      
 

                     
1Mattie Dykes referred to the Administration Building as Tudor-Gothic, but much of the gothic architecture 

on college campuses in the United States is referred to as Collegiate-Gothic. 
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Exterior 
 
 The Administration Building on the campus of Northwest Missouri State University is a 
Tudor-Gothic or Collegiate Gothic, four-story brick building with limestone and terra cotta 
accents.  The red brick, supplied by Northwest Missouri brickyards, is laid in a Flemish bond 
pattern, each course consisting of alternating stretchers and headers, with a simple concave joint. 
A limestone base rises four feet from the cement footings and is back cut forty-five degrees to 
meet the brick.  Just above the stone base the brick is laid in a decorative pattern of eight courses 
topped by two recessed courses.  The decorative pattern continues to a stone belt that encircles 
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the building drawing distinction between the first and second floors.  The southeastern façade 
(front of the building) measures three hundred feet in length with two gable roofed wings 
measuring sixty-five feet in length extending from each end of the building.  The roofs are 
covered with slate shingles and on the peak of the gable roofs there are six copper cupola vents 
that circulated air through the building during the summer.  The cupolas on the west were 
destroyed during the fire of 1979, but replicas were created by Lawrence Hummel of Hamburg, 
Iowa.   On the eaves of the roof there are decorative supports with inlaid scrolls that extend out 
from the trusses.  
  
 The focal point of the façade is a squared gothic gatehouse feature that has octagonal 
towers at each corner that rise over the roof.    At the base of the towers the corners are accented 
with decorative stone quoins.  Between the towers is a squared stone surround around the main 
entrance.  Around the door is a Tudor arch with terra cotta coping and directly over the door 
carved in stone is the quote, “And the truth shall make you free.”  Inside the entry way bordering 
the inscription are two lights and over the door is a purple leaded glass transom.  Bordering the 
main entrance are windows framed in white stone.  Above the entryway are four small windows 
at one and a half stories that have a belt course of stone above and below them.  Above the small 
windows is a two-story group of windows with a Tudor arch with a label hood mold.  At this 
level there are also four equally proportioned windows with stone lintels and headers on the 
second and third floors.  There are also three small windows that are placed in rotation at 
different elevations around the towers. Each tower and the roof of the gatehouse are capped with 
stone battlements.  Below the battlements is a large terra cotta school crest with the year of 1907 
written in roman numerals.  The crest is bordered by two smaller terra cotta tiles.     
 
 The east and west wing of the Administration Building are symmetrical.  They have steep 
gable roofs with a copper cupola at the peak.  There are twenty-seven windows on each side that 
all have stone lintels with steel headers hidden by the brick work.  The windows have been 
replaced around the building with more efficient units, but all the original openings remain.  The 
gable roofs meet another gable roof forming a valley on each wing.  The gable end of the front 
façade is a stepped parapet wall with stone coping that extends past the gable roof.  Moving 
down the gable end there are several groups of windows, which allow most of the rooms in the 
wings access to natural light. The second and third floor windows, on the gable ends, have a terra 
cotta label hood header with label stops.  The northeast and southwest or the ends of the east and 
west wings have outset entry ways with quoin edges, topped by stone battlements and terra cotta 
Tudor arches over the doors.     
  
 The rear of the building is quite different, than it was prior to a fire in 1979.  The fire 
destroyed the rear wing of the building, collapsing the roof over the theater and gymnasium.  
Originally, the north wing extended one hundred and eight feet from the center of the building 
and ended with a gable parapet wall.  On each side of the north wing there were six sets of 
double hung windows on the first floor, and six large windows on the second and third floor with 
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stone lintels and arched headers.  Between the windows there were buttresses with stone accents 
that helped support the large gable roof.  Now the large north wing of the building is replaced by 
a smaller one-story brick addition with a hip roof.  The new addition extends thirty-six feet and 
houses the heating and cooling system for the building.  On the rear of the building, where the 
theater once was, is stucco over the brick that fills in the hole left by the destruction of the 
theater and gymnasium.  Rear gable ends of the back of the building are symmetrical to the front 
gable ends.  However, there are two dormer walls on the back side of the building on both the 
east and west wing between the gate house feature and the gable ends.  These walls have glass 
blocks on the second and third stories to illuminate the back stair wells. 
 
Interior 
    
   The interior of the four-story Administration Building has gone through a variety of 
changes to adapt to changes in campus life.  The school moved into the building in October of 
1910, even before construction was complete, and it was in continual use until being vacated for 
a short time after the fire in 1979.  This did not last long with the family and consumer science 
department moving back into the east wing in 1980.  Originally the Administration Building or 
Academic Hall was the center of campus life, so the building housed school offices, classrooms, 
the library, two gymnasiums, room for a laboratory school, and a large auditorium.  As other 
buildings were added around campus, the function of the building changed.  Currently, the 
building houses administrative offices and student services on the first, second and third floors 
with the east half of the third floor used as classrooms and offices for the family and consumer 
science classrooms.  The fourth floor was relegated to storage space following the 1979 fire.   
 
 Upon entering the main entrance there is a small entryway with two more doors to enter 
the first floor of the building.  Once in the main hall of the first floor there are stairways on both 
sides, with black decorative round newel posts, handrails, and square balusters, that lead to a 
landing a half story above the first floor.  The floor of the landing is at the level of the leaded 
glass over the main entryway and there are five plaster tiles of the Elgin Marbles hung on the 
back wall just above the arched glass.  There is a single set of stairs to the second floor that 
originally was designed to lead to the main entrance of the second floor auditorium.  There are 
also two sets of stairs in the back of the building in the east and west wings.  The stairs have 
squared newel posts on the first floor and on each landing, with the same hand rail and balusters 
as the main entrance stairway. The back stairways rise to the third floor but have been closed to 
access the attic on the fourth floor.  There is also an elevator at the back of the building just to 
the east of center.  It is in an airshaft that was designed as part of the buildings original 
ventilation system.   
 
 The first floor has a hall running down the center of the building from the east entryway 
to the west entryway.  The hall is fourteen feet wide at its narrowest but widens at the center of 
the building where there is a large wooden kiosk for student services.  The floor is concrete and 
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covered by decorative green and tan tiles.  The walls of the corridor are plaster and decorated 
with nine inch base on the floor and a four inch chair rail that is four and half feet off the floor.  
The ceiling is thirteen-feet high, but it is covered by a nine-foot drop ceiling with acoustic tiles.  
The hallway is lined with six panel doors into a number of University offices.  Most of the doors 
look the same as when the building opened with a twelve inch plinth block, large six inch square 
casing and backbend and topped with a six inch crown mold. The offices on the east end of the 
hall have more decorative entryways with half glass sidelights.   
 
 The second floor is much more modern because of an extensive renovation of the office 
space in the late 1990’s.  The cement floor is covered with carpet.  The visible walls are drywall 
and there is a nine-foot acoustic tiled drop ceiling.  At the top of the main staircase on the 
northern half (or back) of the Administration Building is a glass window reception area that 
serves as office space for the Admissions office.  From the center of the second floor going east 
and west there are two main doors to the north that lead to more office space.  Along the central 
hallway are two bulletin boards that are inset with the new walls.   The east and west wings are 
separated from the hallway by a set of double doors.  Each wing has several offices and 
multipurpose rooms around a main reception area.  The second floor has changed drastically 
since the buildings construction, but one feature that still remains is a stone statue of Abraham 
Lincoln that resides at the top of the main staircase. 
 
 The third floor is a mixture of the old and the new.  The floor of the hallway is covered 
with a vinyl floor covering and replaces the base shoe rising up the plaster walls six inches.  
There is a four inch chair rail that encircles the hallway four and half feet off the floor. The 
ceiling of the hallway is nine-foot acoustic tiled drop ceiling that covers the original thirteen-foot 
ceiling.  The hall is lined with doors on the north and south that lead into classrooms and offices 
used by the family and consumer science department.  The trim around the doors looks similar to 
that of the first floor with a twelve inch plinth block at the base, large six inch square casing and 
backbend, and topped with a six inch crown mold.  Double doors lead into a meeting space in the 
west wing that is encircled by offices and conference rooms that were all renovated in 1996.  The 
floor is carpeted and the walls are all drywall and decorated similar to the second floor.  The 
entryway to the east wing is a single six panel door with six inch casing and topped with a two-
foot tall transom.  The wall surrounding the door is covered with a wood clapboard siding. Inside 
the east wing there are classrooms and offices around a sitting area.  The main room has a three 
inch chair rail running around the room at three feet and a ten foot drop ceiling.  The doors have 
six inch casing with a twelve inch plinth block, and above the doors there are transoms with 
brass hardware designed to open the top of the windows.  The entryway to the south classroom 
has a six pane half light double doors with half window side lights and a transom over the whole 
entryway.       
 
 The fourth floor and basement are off limits to the public.  The east wing of the fourth 
floor gives access to a spiral staircase in the southeast tower (the only tower with a usable 
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staircase).  The west wing is not accessible because the large steel trusses that once held up the 
roof were destroyed by the 1979 fire.  The trusses have been replaced by a wood rafter and floor 
truss system that replicates the roof line of the building before the fire.  The fourth floor was 
designed as attic space but because of space constrictions was used by the school for classroom 
and office space until the 1979 fire damaged the building. The basement has ceilings as tall as 
the first floor with thick walls that support the structure above.  The basement is a mechanical 
area filled with steam pipes and other utilities.   
 
Resources within Boundary 
 
 There are three non-contributing resources that fall within the described boundary of the 
Administration building.  To the southeast of the building there is a five-foot tall brick sign with 
a limestone cap that was dedicated by the class of 1968.  Just in front of the sign there is a set of 
three metal flag poles.  The third resource within the boundary is a marble fountain in the cul-de-
sac to the east of the building.  This fountain was dedicated to the city of Maryville by the 
National Humane Alliance in 1911 and was originally placed at the intersection of Fourth Street 
and Main Street.  The fountains original function was used to water horses that came to town. As 
automobiles gradually replaced horses, the city moved the fountain to the entry way of the 
college, but it was not plumbed for water.  During the administration of President Foster, the 
fountain was relocated east of the Administration Building and reconnected to water.   
 
Historical Integrity 
 
 The Administration Building demonstrates simple early 20th century Collegiate Gothic 
Architecture.  The large brick structure with stone accents and iconic towers rises above the 
Northwest Missouri State University campus and has come to symbolize education, economic 
growth, and culture for Northwest Missouri.  The internal floor plan has gone through several 
renovations as the school has grown, but retains its central hallways and some historic trim and 
finishes on the first and third floor.  The 1979 fire destroyed the north wing containing the Frank 
Deerwester Theater and two gymnasiums. A large scale reconstruction project recreated the 
original roof lines, leaving the primary façade and overall appearance of the building intact.  
Even now, nearly a century after the Northwest Normal completed construction; the 
Administration Building remains the symbol and center of an ever changing campus. 
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Summary 
 
 The Administration Building on the campus of Northwest Missouri State University is 
locally significant under criterion A in the area of EDUCATION.    Northwest Missouri State 
University was originally founded as the Fifth District Normal School in 1905 with construction 
of the Administration Building starting in 1906.  Construction dragged on with several delays 
but the Normal moved into the unfinished building in 1910.  Once occupied the Administration 
Building became the centerpiece of the Fifth District Normal, which sponsored a variety of on-
campus and outreach programs for residents and teachers in the region.  From this building, the 
administration coordinated the evolution of the institution from a normal school to a state 
university and the growth from a single academic building to over twenty buildings on 370 acres. 
The role of the building has changed since its completion, but the iconic towers of the high-style 
Collegiate Gothic building has grown to symbolize the school’s effect on culture, access to 
education, and economic development for Maryville and northwest Missouri.  The period of 
significance is from 1910 to 1959.  The period encompasses the completion of the 
Administration Building through the period when the building housed the primary 
administration, educational and recreational functions of the institution. 
 

Elaboration 
 The Normal Years (1905 – 1919) 

 
On 17 March 1905, the Missouri General Assembly passed the bill creating the Fifth 

District Normal School and by the fall of that same year a commission appointed by Governor 
Folk awarded Maryville the site of the new normal school.  The construction of Academic Hall, 
which later became known as the Administration Building, started a year later in the fall of 1906. 
 The early years of the Fifth District Normal School faced budget shortfalls that threatened the 
construction of Academic Hall and the financial stability of the Normal.  However, the Fifth 
District Normal emerged from these problems a vibrant institution and became a State Teachers 
College in 1919. 

     
The Fifth District Normal School was the last state funded normal school established in 

Missouri, but the normal school movement began over a half century earlier.  Early educational 
philosophers, such as Horace Mann, established an idea that public schools taught students what 
it meant to be American and thus benefited business by preserving order, extending wealth, and 
securing property.  This work was mainly done in local publically supported common schools 
available to everyone at no cost.   However, to accomplish these goals, common schools needed 
professionally trained teachers.  Mann and others advocated the creation of state funded schools 
expressly designed to train teachers.  The advocates were influenced by similar institutions 
founded in Western European nations called “normal schools.”  The agitation for professionally 
trained teachers led Massachusetts to found three state normal schools in 1839.  Normal schools 
expanded west and by 1875 there were about seventy state funded normal schools, training over 
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twenty-three thousand prospective teachers in twenty-five states.2   
 

Missouri, along with other southern states, lagged behind the East and Midwest in the 
creation of state normal schools.  The agitation for normal schools in Missouri started in the 
1840s but progress for Missouri teacher training had to wait until after the Civil War.  Private 
normal schools arose first but provided few new teachers.  So in 1867, the General Assembly 
created the First State Normal school in Kirksville, which already had a private normal school.  
Then in 1871 Warrensburg was selected as the site of the Second District Normal School.  To 
make travel easier for students, in 1873, Missouri founded a third normal school in Cape 
Girardeau.  Missouri now had state funded normal schools in the Northeast, Southeast and 
central part of the state but other regions of Missouri would have to wait thirty years for similar 
state funded normal schools.3

 
  Lobbying for a normal school in Northwest Missouri began after the foundation of the 

normal school at Cape Girardeau and culminated with the introduction of legislation in 1874.  
The first bill to create a normal school in Northwest Missouri was defeated in the House and 
never made it out of committee in the State Senate.  Another attempt followed in 1890 that 
passed the State Senate, but fell three votes short of passing in the State House.4  By the 
beginning of the twentieth century the three state normal schools and various private institutions 
could not keep up with the demand for professionally trained teachers.  The State Teachers 
Association met in Columbia, Missouri, in 1904 to discuss the foundation of two more normal 
schools.  The new schools would be spread around the state to alleviate travel for students that 
wanted to attend.  The previous year a normal school bill had passed the State Legislature but 
was vetoed by the Governor.5  In January of 1905, J.H. Lemon, a State Representative from 
Nodaway County, introduced a bill to create the Fifth District Normal School.  The original bill 
provided one hundred thousand dollars in state vouchers for the Board of Regents to build or 
purchase land.6  To pass the bill the appropriations provision was dropped in favor of a bidding 
process by prospective cities.  Members of the General assembly realized cities would prosper 
after securing a state normal so the state created a bidding system.  Cities, competing for the 
normal schools, offered cash and land inducements to entice the placement committees to locate 

                     
2 Lawrence A. Cremin, The Transformation of the School (New York: Alfred A Knopt, 1961), 17; Charles 

A. Harper, A Century of Public Teacher Education (West Port, Connecticut: Greenwood Press, 1939), 25, 37, & 90-
91; Lawerance A. Cremin, The American Common School: A Historic Conception (Bureau of Public Teachers 
College. Columbia University, New York, 1951), 219. 

3 Claude A. Phillips, A History of Education in Missouri: the Essential Facts Concerning the History and 
Organization of Missouri’s Schools (Jefferson City: Hugh Stephens Printing Company, 1911), 88-89, 91-99. 

4 Mattie M. Dykes, Behind the Birches: a History of Northwest Missouri State College (Maryville, MO: 
Northwest Missouri State College, 1956), 8; Mattie Dykes, “Higher Education Comes to Maryville,” Tales of 
Nodaway County: A Book of Representative Stories and Unusual Tales (Maryville, Mo: The Society, 1977), 64-65.  

5 “State Normal to be Discussed,” The Maryville Tribune, 28 December 1904, 2. 
6 “Gets Bill Read,” The Maryville Tribune, 25 January 1905, 1; The Nodaway County Legislators…Brown 

to Brown (Rush Printing Maryville, Mo; 1991), 27. 
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the normal schools in their communities.   
 
Once the bill passed the state legislature, towns in the district began preparing bids for 

the 16 July deadline.  Maryville’s Commercial Club formed a special committee to prepare the 
bid for the state selection committee.  The Commercial Club and other civic groups began 
soliciting donations from citizens of the community and the surrounding communities in 
Nodaway County thought too small to compete for the normal school.  Maryville’s final bid 
offered the choice of seven sites and a guaranteed subscription of $90,000, with half being paid 1 
October 1906 and the other half paid exactly a year later.  Furthermore, Maryville offered the 
Seminary Building, which would be donated to the city if the normal school was secured. Other 
communities only offered one possible site and did not give deadlines for subscription payments. 
 After the state legislature received the bids the state selection commission planned to visit each 
community and after site visits the selection commission announced Maryville won the Fifth 
District Normal School on Friday, 4 August 1905.  A crowd of people congregated on the 
courthouse lawn after news reached Maryville and the celebration for winning the normal school 
continued through the night.7

 
Once the celebration concluded, Maryville citizens and the soon to be appointed Board of 

Regents looked towards opening the Fifth District Normal School.  Before the governor had even 
appointed a Board of Regents, the buzz in Maryville centered on opening the school immediately 
or waiting to secure financial support from the State Legislature, which did not meet again until 
1907.  The same debate hung over the first meeting of the Board of Regents on 12 September 
1905.  The Daily Tribune announced the following day the school would open for the summer 
term of 1906, and outlined the discussion of a proposal asking the legislature for appropriations 
to construct a glamorous campus.  The Board of Regents focused on the circumstances of 
collecting the money from Maryville’s inducement, finding a President for the new school, and 
choosing the new campus.  The Board of Regent’s Minutes gave little insight into the discussion 
but after a lunch break the group toured the site of the future campus. Eventually, the Board 
chose the campus, which consisted of the Thomas Gaunt property (twenty-one acres) a 
deteriorating tree nursery, the Yetter property (twenty-two and half acres), Miller property 
(twenty-eight acres), the Seminary (ten acres), and two city blocks, which created a campus of 
eighty-six and a half acres.  The properties cost the Board $31,327 and left them with $58,673 
from the original inducement of $90,000.8 The successive Board of Regents meetings that 
followed in the spring of 1906 answered the town’s questions on the future of the new Fifth 
District Normal School. 

                     
7 “Gets Bill Ready,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 25 January 1905, 1; “Governor Has Signed Bill,” The 

Maryville Daily Tribune, 27 March 1905, 1; “Takes our Bid to State,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 15 July 1905, 
1; Dykes, Behind the Birches, 1st and 2nd Chapter. 

8 “Start the School,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 29 August 1905, 1; “Normal to Open in June,” The 
Maryville Daily Tribune, 13 September 1905, 1; Board of Regents Minutes: Book 1, 12 September 1905, 4 - 5; 
Dykes, Behind the Birches, 39-42. 
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The Board of Regents early work in 1906 focused on opening the school.  The Board 

feared delaying opening would hinder the new normal school’s chances for funding from the 
next biennial budget.  In January, the Board of Regents hired Frank Deerwester as the President 
of the new normal school and instructed him to prepare for a ten week summer school.  The 
Board also requested the transfer of all the bonus funds of $90,000 to the school (half the money 
was not due until October 1906) so the Fifth Normal could start the following summer.  The 
Board planned to use $58,672 remaining from the bonus fund to finance the operating expenses 
of the school, which would start 13 June 1906.9   

 
 The next Board of Regents meeting, on 13 March 1906, lasted two and a half days.  

Many of the details for opening the school in June and running the school were finalized.  The 
Board selected the faculty, hiring a number of superintendents from Missouri and surrounding 
states, and created a continuing education program for teachers already working in the district. 
The school further announced classes for the summer would be held in Maryville’s Central 
School building, and then by fall would move into the Seminary Building and some rented 
rooms around town.  Holding classes spread around town was not ideal for the new school, but 
the Seminary was not equipped to handle the number of students many felt would attend.  The 
only other building on the new campus was the Gaunt House, but the Board decided the old farm 
house would better serve the campus as the President’s House.10  With buildings chosen and a 
faculty in place, the Fifth District Normal was poised to open, though the challenges were only 
beginning.    

 
Plans for renovating the Seminary Building were in place, but many on the Board felt it 

was too small to accommodate the potential growth of the new school.  Construction of 
Academic Hall, the name given to the large central building that would house the Fifth District 
Normal School, had been discussed in early Board of Regents meetings but focus on opening the 
school in a timely fashion seemed the Board’s primary concern.  With plans in place for the 
school to open in June, the Board focused on the planning and construction of Academic Hall.   
At the Board of Regents’ meeting in March 1906 the Executive Committee was ordered to 
instruct architect J.H. Felt11 to design and act as the project manager on all campus 
improvements.  At the Board of Regents next meeting on 22 June, Felt presented three sets of 
                     

9 “Paid All of it to Board,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 2 January 1906, 1; Dykes, Behind the Birches, 43-
47. 
 10 “Choose Normal Faculty,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 13 March 1906, 1; Dykes, Behind the Birches, 
49-51. 

11 J.H. Felt was a notable early twentieth century Missouri architect. Although largely self taught, under his 
leadership J.H. Felt and Company and later Felt, Dunham & Kriehn were responsible for designing a large number 
of educational facilties, civic buildings and churches in Missouri and Kansas.  Of note Felt designed four Missouri 
buildings that are currently listed in the National Register of Historic Places: a colonial revival house that is a 
contributing building in the Krug Park Place Historic District in Saint Joseph; George Washington Carver School in 
Fulton; City Hall in Forest City; and Hicklin School in Lexington. 
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rough plans for a new building.  The Board selected a Tudor-Gothic style building, which would 
house school offices, classrooms, the library, two gymnasiums, a laboratory, club rooms, and a 
large auditorium.  The Board then requested Felt prepare a detailed designs for the next meeting. 
On 7 September, the Board of Regents accepted a general survey of the grounds and an 
architectural plan for a new campus building.  Construction of Academic Hall would begin as 
soon as possible with a plan of moving into the school’s new home by early 1908.12     
 
 The Northwest Normal fought through budget shortfalls, disputes with contractors, and 
weather delays, but the Board of Regents believed the construction of a large academic building 
was paramount to the success of the institution. The Board started construction with the 
remaining $35,000 from the bonus fund, and planned to secure the remaining $265,000 for the 
construction from the State Legislature.  Sparks and company from Saint Joseph won the 
contract for the pouring of a concrete base with a brick and Carthage stone foundation.  Sparks 
started the foundation, working into the winter, but halted construction in February 1907 because 
the Board of Regents wanted to wait for funding from the State Legislature.  The normal school 
did not receive enough money to complete Academic Hall from the State Legislature, but the 
Board of Regents went on with the original plans fearing a smaller building would be outgrown 
in the near future.  In May, the Board selected D.E. Marshall to construct the building, and 
Sparks restarted work on the foundation in late May with the hope of finishing by August.  The 
cornerstone ceremony had to wait until mid October, but the festivities showcased the new Fifth 
District Normal School to the rest of the state and recaptured support from people in the 
district.13

 
 With the foundation complete, brickwork on the exterior walls of Academic Hall started 
the first week of January and the second story walls were completed by the middle of February 
1908.  Work continued on the building vigorously throughout the winter, with an expected 
autumn delivery date for the first floor and gymnasium.  While work progressed on the other 
parts of the building, the Board planned to use these areas almost immediately after enclosing the 
building.  Academic Hall was ready for steel trusses and the slate roof by 9 May 1908.  Because 
of budget cuts by the state, work on the building stopped on 18 June 1908 and would not start 
again until August of the following year. The Fifth District Normal School finally received 
appropriations to finish the building in the 1909 Biennial Budget but work progressed slowly.  
                     

12 “The Maryville Normal,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, from The St. Joseph Gazette,  4 January 1906, 2; 
 “Faculty is Complete”, The Maryville Daily Tribune, 14 March 1906, 1; Board of Regents Minutes Book 1, 15 
March 1906, 16; “Contract Between Architect and Owner,” Board of Regents Minutes Book 1, 11 December 1906, 
27; “Study School Site,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 25 July 1906, 1; “Plan for School Work,” The Maryville 
Daily Tribune, 23 June 1906, 1; Board of Regents Minutes: Book 1, 7 September 1906, 23; Dykes, Behind the 
Birches, 56. 

13 “Normal soon to Build,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 7 September 1906, 1; “Normal work to Sparks,” 
The Maryville Daily Tribune, 25 September 1906, 1; “Normal is Now to Build,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 17 
May 1907, 1; “Big day for Maryville and the Normal,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 12 October 1907, 1; Dykes, 
Behind the Birches, 56 -64. 
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Marshall feared receiving payment so he often waited until being paid for each phase before 
ordering materials for the next phase of construction.  Work progressed slowly through the 
winter, but by June 1910 finish work had begun on the second floor.   Marshall promised the 
building would be ready for occupancy in time for the start of the fall semester in August.  The 
school did not move into the building until October 1910, but Marshall continued work on the 
building through the end of 1910.  Eventually, the Board of Regents met with Felt, the architect, 
to discuss the state of the building.  Felt refused to accept the building as complete and advised 
the Regents to use the remaining $10,770 left in the building fund to hire another contractor to 
finish the incomplete building.  The Board hired E.G. Chandler, a construction firm from St 
Joseph, as general contractor, and the students became familiar with the sounds of going to 
school in the midst of a construction site.  The building took just over a year to complete and 
there was little fanfare when Felt advised the Board to accept the building as complete.14

 
 During the construction of Academic Hall, the Board of Regents and the President of the 
Normal spent much of their time dealing with construction related topics.  The Board felt 
finishing the building was paramount to the future of the school.  Academic Hall allowed the 
expansion and addition of new programs with discussion of adding a manual training program 
that would not have been possible with the previous cramped conditions in the Seminary 
Building.  Once the Normal moved into the building in the fall of 1910, the Board began to 
refocus on the mission and scope of the institution. When the Northwest Normal was founded, 
the state lacked an adequate number of quality secondary schools, and normal schools filled two 
roles. The normal’s primary function was to train teachers, but the school also served as a 
regional secondary school for students from communities without high schools.  Under the 
presidencies of H.K. Taylor and his successor, Ira Richardson, the Northwest Normal became a 
true college by instituting new admissions requirements, strengthening the curriculum, and 
raising the quality of instruction to be on par with standard four year colleges. 
  

Originally the Normal offered a thirty hour course of study that gave teachers a two-year 
common school certificate and a sixty hour life diploma.  The Fifth District Normal also 
provided a comprehensive summer school that prepared students for the state or county 
superintendent’s exam.  The rural common schools badly needed teachers so county 
superintendents were allowed to establish local standards for teachers.  In many counties, to 
teach the common grades teachers only needed an eighth grade education and a passing grade on 
                     

 
14 “Normal News,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 14 January 1908, 2; “Normal News Notes,” The 

Maryville Daily Tribune, 14 February 1908, 2; “Above the Second Story,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 5 March 
1908, 1; “Working on Northwest Normal being Waged,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 15 May 1908, 1; “Normal 
Building at Stand Still,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 12 June 1908, 3; “Contractor Threatens to Stop Normal 
Work,” The Maryville Weekly Tribune, 4 November 1909, 6; “Normal School Moving into New Building,” The 
Maryville Weekly Tribune, 6 October 1910. 5; “Board of Regents May Complete the Building,” The Maryville 
Weekly Tribune, 2 February 1911, 3; Board of Regents Minutes: Book 1, 13 April 1911, 185-186; Board of Regents 
Minutes: Book 1, 23 May 1911, 199; Dykes, Behind the Birches, 66-70. 
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the county exams.  The summer program also offered a variety of courses for teachers already 
employed so they could eventually receive a two-year certificate and then a life diploma.  After 
the first summer session 40 students received two-year certificates from the newly founded 
Normal.  Many of the students that summer had attended other Normals in the state, but it was 
easier to finish their degrees closer to home after the Fifth District Normal opened in Maryville.  
The area needed teachers and this program trained adequate teachers to teach in the common 
schools of the area, but the curriculum was well below the standards of a university or college.15

 
 The first step to strengthening the Fifth District Normal School was instituting standards 
for the admission of students. The 1906 catalogue established the standards of age fifteen to 
attend the sub-normal and age sixteen to attend normal classes, but these admissions standards 
were not always followed.  The students were supposed to possess a good moral character, and a 
letter from past attended schools (other normals, high schools, or common schools).  In 1911, 
admission was standardized and evidence of graduation from common school or a district 
certificate was needed to enter Normal classes.  Those admitted to the Normal were classified in 
three ways: students who had attended some college or academy, high school graduates, or a 
holder of a first or second grade county certificate.  Those admitted to the sub-normal had to 
hold a third grade certificate and pass the teaching exam or be a graduate of a rural or grammar 
school.  Admissions also brought in a higher caliber of students by offering scholarships.  In 
1906, scholarships were offered to students who had done well on county exams, but by 1916 the 
Normal offered scholarships to graduates of four year high schools from the district.  The 
Normal wanted to increase the number of high school graduates in attendance and encouraged 
students to stay in the high schools of the district. 16

 
 The Northwest Normal at the same time began to standardize and improve the curriculum 
in the teacher training program.  Nationally normal schools limited the expansion of their 
curriculum to focus on teacher training, but with the expansion of local high schools, normal 
schools expanded their programs to train teachers in the content areas necessary to teach high 
school classes.  Northwest followed the national trend by creating a ninety hour advanced life 
diploma, but this was still a far cry from a bachelor’s degree.  So in 1911, the Regents added a 
Bachelor of Pedagogy.  However, this was a Bachelor’s degree in name only because in 1909 the 
Board of Regents limited the study of academic departments to no more than the equivalent of a 
sophomore year in college.  The degree lasted only two years, but it was clear that the Normal 

                     
15 Janice Brandon-Falcone, Transitions: 100 years of Northwest Missouri State University, (Maryville, 

MO: Northwest Missouri State University, 2005), 23 & 25; “Class of 40 has Honors,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 
23 July 1906, 1; “108 Classes each Day at the State Normal,” The Daily Tribune, 10 July 1913, 1.  

16 “Announcement of regular session 1906-1907,” Bulletin of the State Normal School Maryville, MO,  
(June 1906);  The Fifth Annual Catalogue of the Northwest Normal ( July 1911) 13; “Will Give 19 Free Work,” The 
Maryville Daily Tribune, 4 October 1906, 1; “Scholarships Now Offered,” The Green and White Courier, 23 
February, 1916, 1&4. 
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sought to compete with other small four year colleges.17

  
  The Fifth District Normal was not ready to be a four year college to train teachers in 
1911 but the idea was beginning to take root.  The first major problem to solve was 
strengthening the course of study.  Ira Richardson came to campus in the fall of 1911 and was 
named head of the Training School and Director of Education.  The Training School was a 
common school on the first floor in southeast wing of Academic Hall.  Normal students taught 
elementary students under the direction of certified teachers in the Training School.  Richardson 
expanded the role of the training school by requiring students to spend a quarter of the day 
teaching for a quarter of the semester and a half of the day for another quarter.  This program 
gave prospective teachers more experience in the field of teaching.  Another major change in the 
normal school’s curriculum came with the hiring of H.K. Taylor.  His predecessor, President 
Cook, weathered a scandal over the qualifications and standards for graduation.  During Cook’s 
tenure, the Board of Regents awarded life diplomas to students who had not successfully 
completed all requirements.  The Carnegie Report, a survey of the history and qualifications of 
the teacher training programs in Missouri, had pointed out that students took classes in any 
order. This led to a variety of students in each class, but little idea of the level of each student.  
Taylor changed the system by instituting a class numbering system; so all students knew the first 
two years were the equivalent of the third and fourth year of high school.18  These changes 
professionalized the product of the Fifth District Normal. 
 
   Ira Richardson took over the Presidency of the Fifth District Normal in June of 1913 
and moved quickly to improve the standards of the school.  His first major action was to bring in 
highly qualified professors.  He had a master’s degree from the Teachers College at Columbia 
University in New York, the preeminent teacher training school in the country.  He worked to 
bring in teachers from other like institutions that had received more education than offered at a 
typical normal school. These new professors and instructors visited schools in the district to 
better understand how to prepare students to be teachers.  Under Richardson the Fifth District 
Normal School soon had a greater percentage of faculty members with advanced degrees than 
any other normal school in the state.  Richardson further worked to create a standardized course 
for teacher training by inviting the Presidents of all the normal schools to Maryville.  Only two 
other presidents attended the meeting in the summer of 1913, but the recommendations became 
the foundation for standards adopted by the State Superintendent of Schools.  Richardson then 
prepared to create a true Bachelor’s of Science in Education.  He convinced the Board of 
Regents to eliminate their earlier ruling on limiting academic work and convinced the Board to 
stop offering the Bachelor’s of Pedagogy.  He instituted the use of semester hours, and enhanced 

                     
17 Charles A. Harper, A Century of Public Teacher Education (West Port, Connecticut:  Greenwood Press, 

1939), 129-133; Board of Regents Minutes: Book 1, 1 June 1909, 102.   
18 Dykes, Behind the Birches, 109 & 137; Board of Regents Minutes: Book 1, 1 June 1909, 102; Milton 

Clyde Hill, A Decade of Progress in Teacher Training (New York: Teachers College, Columbia University, 1972), 
90.   
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the curriculum to be on par with standard four-year teachers colleges.  Finally on 18 March 
1915, the Board of Regents, at the behest of Richardson, established a four-year post-secondary 
Bachelor of Science in Education.  The degree gained recognition a year later when a meeting of 
superintendents at the Northwest Normal recognized the 120 hour degree as a comprehensive 
B.S. in Education.  The 1917 and 1918 Biennial Report of the Fifth District Normal School 
reported that twenty-seven students received the degree since its inception.  The Normal would 
not become a teacher’s college until 1919, but the new degree propelled the Fifth District 
Normal to be on par with other four-year teachers colleges.19    
  
 The Northwest Normal offered a typical approach to achieving a degree but they also 
offered ways for nontraditional students to achieve teacher certification. During the fall and 
spring semesters students who could not make it to campus could take correspondence courses.  
Later, Northwest added rural extension programs where instructors traveled to towns in the 
region to offer teacher training courses. For the teachers who wanted to achieve certification but 
already had teaching jobs, the Normal offered a full complement of summer courses.  In 1915 the 
normal school offered 124 summer courses with half being for college credit.  During the 
institutions years as a normal school, a majority of students attended the Fifth District Normal 
during the summer term.  During this period fall enrollments were one hundred and fifty to three 
hundred students, but summer ranged from three hundred students at its low to over six hundred 
students.  These programs allowed practicing teachers the opportunity to further their 
education.20  Even though many students rarely came to campus, the Administration Building 
symbolized education and economic opportunity throughout Northwest Missouri. 
  

The Fifth District Normal provided a quality certification program for teachers in 
Northwest Missouri, but the school’s influence on teaching in Northwest Missouri extended 
further than certification.  The Normal offered a variety of outreach programs for teachers.  The 
center piece of these programs was a meeting of the county teachers associations held in 
Academic Hall.  The programs consisted of entertainment by musicians, teaching 
demonstrations, and lectures by prominent educators from around the country.  In 1912, the 
Superintendent of Omaha Public Schools came to campus to give a lecture, and in 1911, the 
manual training program prepared a model playground as a display for area teachers.  The 
Normal started inviting teachers from six local counties in 1911 and by 1917 the gathering had 
grown to be named the First Annual District Convention.  That year it was reported that over five 
hundred teachers from the district attended the conference held in Academic Hall.21

                     
19 Dykes, Behind the Birches, 112-113; ”New Department Head,” The Green and White Courier, 23 

February 1914, 3; Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 59; “Collegiate Course for Normal School,” The Maryville Daily 
Tribune, 18 May 1915, 1; “Normal Envoys out Gleaning the Fact,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 5 September 
1915, 1; Tower Yearbook 1917, 9; “Biennial Report of the 5th District Normal School 1917-1918”, Journal of the 
House and Senate of Missouri, 14-15.

20 “Normal announces Summer’s Program,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 13 May 1915, 3. 
21 “Busy at the Normal Fixing for Visitors,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 24 October 1913, 1; “Gay in Red 
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 Teacher training was the main focus of the Fifth District Normal School, but during this 
period in the school’s history the agriculture program also impacted Maryville and Northwest 
Missouri.  This program was an extension of teacher training because most normal school 
graduates were required to teach courses on agriculture in local common schools.  In 1909, 
Taylor proposed a small farm plot in front of the Administration Building to grow produce for 
profit.  The program failed but the area was used for test plots of corn and student gardens for 
several years.  Eventually the farm moved north towards the Wabash Railroad.  Maryville was 
one of a few schools in the state with a comprehensive agriculture program, which was necessary 
considering a majority of students worked in rural schools.  In fact the State Superintendent of 
Schools reported twenty-nine percent of students had not studied agriculture even though they 
would be required to teach it.  The agriculture program benefited students at the Normal, but it 
further helped farmers in the county.  The University of Missouri partnered with the Fifth 
District Normal School to establish a University Extension office in the community.  This 
program brought in speakers and specialists to teach farmers new scientific farming techniques 
and about animal husbandry.  The Normal also established an Annual Farm and Home Institute 
that brought in professors and agronomists to teach the local farmers to increase yields.  In 1915, 
a former Kansas State Board of Agriculture member came to campus and spoke for the Annual 
Farm and Home Institute.  The Normal offered direct help to farmers as well.  During the decade 
from 1910 to 1920, students tested the quality of seeds for local farmers to ensure good yields.22 
 All these programs brought community members to the Administration Building on the campus 
of the Fifth District Normal School.  
 

The entertainment offered at the Normal was not reserved solely for teachers or for 
farmers.  The Normal worked to bring in a number of speakers and presenters that brought 
culture and educational opportunities for everyone in the area.  The auditorium in Academic Hall 
housed traveling troops of performers, musicians and lectures on national and international 
events.  The Normal even took over a lecture series regularly offered by the city library.  But the 
culture brought by the Normal was not always presenters.  In 1913, the Administration Building 
housed a traveling art exhibit from the Chicago Art Institute.  The Normal also took on the duties 
of organizing the city Chautauqua held in the area that is now known as College Park.  This was 
a week long summer program that brought speakers, musicians and dramatists from all over the 
country to present in Maryville.  Although this seems outside of the realm of teacher training, 
                                                                               
and White to Greet that Visitors,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 25 April 1912, 1; “Teacher’s Meet in Maryville,” 
The Green and White Courier, 15 November 1916, 1; “First Annual District Convention Held,” The Green and 
White Courier, 14 November 1917, 1. 

22 Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 34; “Superintendent of Public Schools: Training Schools need to offer 
Course Work in Rural Information,” The House and General Assembly Records:50th General Assembly, 65-66; 
R.A. Kinnard, “Agriculture the Normal,” The Green and White Courier, 11 December 1914, 1; “The Normal will 
Help,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 4 March 1918, 1; “A Farm Meet at the Normal,”  The Green and White 
Courier, 4 November 1914, 2; & “F.D. Coburn Coming to Farm Institute,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 8 October 
1915, 1.   
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these events formed a bond between the community and students. 
 
 The Northwest Normal offered a variety of programs and had a recognized Bachelors 
degree by 1917, but was still considered a normal school.  Richardson petitioned on several 
occasions to change the name and status of the normal school, but the measures never made it 
out of the General Assembly.  However, attitudes and perceptions about the programs offered at 
the normal schools around the state were changing.  So the Fiftieth General Assembly 
recognized all the normal schools in the state as standard colleges and changed the name of the 
Fifth District Normal School to the Northwest Missouri State Teachers College in May of 
1919.23

 
The Northwest Normal looked to move into the new decade with a new name, a grand 

building and increased enrollment.  But in March of 1919, a month before the name change, the 
campus was struck by a tornado.  Luckily the tornado hit on a Saturday with only a handful of 
people on campus, so no one was injured.  The tornado tore shingles off the west wing of the 
Administration Building and the north wing auditorium.  There were also several windows 
broken in the building along with the skylight in the fourth floor art room, but much of the 
damage was minor and no classes were canceled.  A few days later President Richardson 
traveled to Jefferson City and secured an additional twenty thousand dollars in the biennial 
budget for campus repairs.  The repairs took the rest of the summer but had little affect on the 
transition to becoming a State Teachers College.24

 
 Northwest Missouri State Teachers College (1919 – 1949)
 
 The Northwest State Teachers College (STC) faced new challenges of survival but 
worked diligently to raise the standards of education during a trying time in American history. 
President Richardson ushered in the changes necessary to raise the Fifth District Normal to the 
standards of a state teachers college, but after the school’s promotion, he served only a short time 
at the helm.  Uel Lamkin replaced Richardson in the fall of 1921.  Although Lamkin did not have 
a formal college degree, he had served in school administration since 1897.  His reputation in the 
field of education garnered him an appointment as the State Superintendent of Schools in 1916.  
When Lamkin succeeded Richardson the Administration Building was still the primary academic 
building on campus.25  However, by the time the STC changed names again in 1949, the college 
added a host of new programs, a variety of buildings, and had survived a global depression and a 

                     
23 The Tower: 1934, 102-103; Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 52; The WPA Guide to 1930’s Missouri, 

(Lawrence, University Press of Kansas, 1986), 491.  
24 “Normal Damage $20,000,” The Green and White Courier, 2 April 1919, 1; “Normal Damage,” The 

Daily Democrat Forum (Maryville, Mo), 15 March 1919, 1; “Estimate Normal Damage,” The Daily Democrat 
Forum (Maryville, Mo), 17 March 1919, 1; “Normal Budget to $195,000,” The Daily Democrat Forum (Maryville, 
Mo), 18 March 1919, 1.   

25 Dykes, Behind the Birches, 118-119; Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 62. 
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world war. 
 

In 1920, the STC added two new degrees, a Bachelor of Science and Bachelor’s of Arts 
degrees, making it a standard college.  The Board of Regents outlined qualifications for a faculty 
member to have at least a master’s degree with five years teaching experience, loyalty, and 
teaching ability.  The improved faculty and programs garnered the STC in Maryville added 
acclaim.  In 1920, the American Association of Teachers Colleges classified Northwest as one of 
thirty-four grade “A” teachers colleges.  Northwest went even further during the 1920’s to 
increase the quality of the faculty.  The Board of Regents outlined an expanded leave of absence 
policy for further education and training of STC instructors.  In 1924, the Board allowed four 
teachers to take a leave of absence with three of the teachers attending the Teachers College at 
Columbia University and the fourth doing graduate work at Harvard University.26  These 
changes continued the improved standard started at the end of the normal school period and 
established the NWSTC as a premiere institution in the region. 
 
 Enrollment increased during the 1920’s at the NWSTC.  The fall semester from 1920 to 
1924 saw an increase in enrollment of nearly three times from 255 students to 723 respectively.  
Although Northwest offered other degrees, the school still placed a heavy focus on teacher 
training.  Many of the teachers in the area had degrees or certifications from the State Teachers 
College.  In 1924 alone, eighty-nine graduates from the STC found jobs in area schools.  
Northwest had such a large impact on the region because not all of the STC’s work in the region 
was done on campus.  With seventy-five percent of the district rural it was important for the 
NWSTC to expand their rural extension program and correspondence work.  The school offered 
more opportunities for teachers who could not make it to the campus.  During the 1921-1922 
school year, the STC held 630 meetings with an attendance of over thirty-six thousand people.  
The special meetings focused on a variety of topics and were meant as informal information 
sessions for members of the community.  In the regular thirty-six extension classes, 380 students 
enrolled in the courses and worked towards a degree or certification.  The regular extension work 
grew as the decade progressed.  In Lamkin’s report to the Fifty-Second General Assembly, he 
explained the expanded role of the extension program in Northwest Missouri.  The school 
offered 630 extension meetings taught by twenty-one instructors and had 527 students enrolled 
in either correspondence work or in the extension program.  These programs allowed teachers to 
further their education in the district and still work.27

                     
26 “College to give two additional Degrees,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 5 May 1920, 1; Board of 

Regents Minutes: Book 2, 4 August 1925, 189; “Teacher’s College is listed in Class A,” The Maryville Daily 
Tribune, 4 August 1920, 1; Board of Regents Minutes, Book 2, 24 March 1924, 139-140; “Teachers in College to 
get Degree,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 26 July 1924, 1. 

27 “Regents Biennial Report of NWMSTC for 53rd General Assembly,” The House and General Assembly 
Records: 53rd General Assembly, 11-16; “Board of Regents Biennial Report of NWMSTC for 54th General 
Assembly,” The House and General Assembly Records: 54th General Assembly, 1-4; “College gets places for its 
Students,” The Maryville Daily Tribune, 2 August 1924, 1; “County has 284 working in Schools,” The Maryville 
Daily Tribune, 17 September 1923, 1; “Biennial Report of the NWMSTC for 51st General Assembly,” The House 
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  The crash of the stock market in 1929 signified a retraction in the American economy 
and the onset of the Great Depression. Unemployment skyrocketed in 1930 to fourteen percent 
nationally, which was eleven percent higher than the previous year. The Great Depression left 
many Americans out of work and without hope.  Investment also tightened with the gross 
domestic investment declining by eighty-seven percent from 1929 to 1932.  This led to greater 
numbers of lay-offs and a further contraction of the economy.  Hoover tried to put more money 
into the economy but it was never enough.  He was routed in the 1932 Presidential election by 
New York Governor Franklin Roosevelt.  Roosevelt promised more government help and 
offered a sense of hope.  He instituted sweeping changes that put people back to work and 
invested federal money back into the economy.28 Under the leadership of President Lamkin and 
the use of New Deal programs, the school remained a viable institution during the trying times. 
 
 During the Great Depression the NWSTC, like similar institutions around the country, 
saw an increase in enrollment.  Nationally, enrollment fell eight percent from 1933-1934, but the 
trend reversed during the 1934-35 school year, especially for modest priced institutions such as 
the NWSTC.  However, the Maryville STC did not follow the same trend; enrollment was steady 
in 1933 from the previous academic year.  Then enrollment boomed in 1935 with one hundred 
more freshmen than the previous year.  By 1939, fall enrollment reached 1050 students 
(combined enrollment of the college and the training school) and this would remain the high 
watermark until the 1950’s.  The summer sessions also saw increased enrollment and they 
averaged a thousand students during the Great Depression.29  The STC now served more 
students on a smaller budget. 
 

The lack of opportunities in the job market and the creation of New Deal programs led 
many students to choose to further their education.  On the college campus in Maryville the Civil 
Works Administration (CWA) and the National Youth Administration (NYA) provided jobs to 
students so they could afford tuition.  Lamkin worked diligently to secure these programs for the 
NWSTC.  The CWA of Nodaway County approved twenty-two jobs for the district in 1933 and 
a majority of the projects took place on campus.  It employed one hundred and fifty men, eighty 
of which were college students who could not afford tuition.  These men did miscellaneous jobs 
around the campus, building tennis courts, a pond and moving cottages from College Park.  
Roosevelt created the NYA in June of 1935 to integrate youth into the culture and economy of 
                                                                               
and General Assembly Records: 51st General Assembly, 7-8; “STC Report on Extension Work,” The Maryville 
Daily Tribune, 10 January 1923, 1; “Biennial Report of the NWMSTC for 52nd General Assembly,” The House and 
General Assembly Records: 52nd General Assembly, 6-7. 

28 Kevin Hillstrom, Defining Moments: The Great Depression and the New Deal (Detroit, Mi: 
Omigraphics, Inc. 2009), 25-38. 

29 Dixon Wecter, The Age of the Great Depression: 1929-1941 (New York, The MacMillen Company, 
1948), 191; “Larger College Enrollment Seen,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 23 November 1935, 1; Brandon-
Falcone, Transitions, 102; “MSC Enrollment Up 13 Percent,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 26 January 1956, 1; The 
Tower: 1940, 22.  



NPS Form 10-900-a            OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86) 

 
United States Department of the Interior 
National Park Service 
 
National Register of Historic Places 
Continuation Sheet 
 
Section number         8          Page          20                                         Administration Building  
                                                                                                                 Nodaway County, MO 
 

the country in a time of mass unemployment.  It gave jobs to students sixteen to twenty five who 
otherwise could not afford to stay in school.  Using NYA funds, Northwest employed seventy-
three students in the fall of 1935.  This was small in comparison to other state teachers colleges 
but Northwest had the smallest enrollment.  Northwest later emerged as a leader in the NYA 
program.  The school held a seven state conference in September of 1936.  Over 150 NYA 
officials and educators came to campus to discuss the future of the NYA.  The conference 
ultimately proposed a fifty percent increase for the program to succeed.  It is unclear if this 
affected national funding but in 1938 the NWSTC secured a pilot project from the NYA.  Most 
students working in NYA jobs were office staff or members of the grounds crew.  The new 
project hired one hundred and ten boys eighteen to twenty-four to build a series of eight 
buildings on campus.  The students built eight small dormitories and went to school at the same 
time.30  
 
  Lamkin also worked diligently to secure New Deal funds to improve the campus and put 
people to work in Maryville.  The Works Projects Administration, WPA, was one such program 
that gave money to colleges for research grants and capital improvement projects.    In 1937, 
Lamkin secured the funds to use WPA workers to paint the first and second floor of the 
Administration Building.  Then in 1940, the STC got money from the state and labor from the 
WPA to enlarge the stage, add acoustic tiles, and refinish the floors of the auditorium in the 
Administration Building.31   
 
 With the increased enrollment seen during the Great Depression and the availability of 
funds, Lamkin promoted the expansion of campus buildings.  The Administration Building was 
still the cornerstone of all academic work done on campus, but it had been designed for five 
hundred students and the college regularly saw enrollments nearer to one thousand students.  He 
believed the school needed to construct a separate training school like the other state teachers 
colleges.  The STC in Maryville had been requesting funds to construct a separate training 
school since the mid 1920’s but shrinking state revenues blocked the passage of the 
appropriations.  The STC had developed a working relationship with the Maryville school 
system because there were more teachers that needed to observe and practice teaching than the 

                     
30 “$23,000 Granted to Civilian Workers Project,” The Northwest Missourian, 8 December 1933, 1; 

Richard A. Reiman, The New Deal and American Youth: Ideas and Ideals in a Depression Decade (Athens & 
London, University of Georgia Press, 1992), 97; Dixon Wecter, The Age of the Great Depression: 1929-1941 (New 
York, The MacMillen Company, 1948), 182; “Maryville School get 73 NYA Jobs,” The Daily Forum (AP from 
Jefferson City), 13 September 1935, 1; “NYA Increases Grant to STC 50% over Last Year,” The Northwest 
Missourian, 18 September 1936, 1; “Need for NYA aid 2 to 8 Times ore than a Year Ago,” The Maryville Daily 
Forum, 20 August 1936, 1 & 2; “NYA will Pioneer in Building Program for boys at College,” The Maryville Daily 
Forum, 13 June 1938, 1; & “NYA to Pioneer in work Project Here,” The Northwest Missourian, 16 June 1938, 1. 

31 Aubrey Williams, “Nation Youth Administration,” The Northwest Missourian, 27 March 1936, 4; 
“Painting Project is Underway,” The Northwest Missourian, 12 February 1937, 6; “STC Auditorium is being 
Repaired,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 19 September 1940, 1; “Conservation Corps Boys are Jubilant as Pay Day 
Arrives; to Spend over $1,000,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 31 July 1933, 1. 
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current training school could handle.  Lamkin eventually used New Deal funds to construct a 
training school and a new library.  These new buildings were dedicated by Governor Starks in 
the fall of 1939.  The former spaces occupied in the Administration Building were repurposed 
into classrooms and offices.  These large construction projects allowed NWSTC to expand 
classroom space and offer more opportunities to the students.32

 
 The New Deal did not end the Great Depression, but helped the country through a 
difficult time.  The outbreak of war in Europe opened the factories and pulled the country out of 
the depression.  President Roosevelt readied the country for war in 1939 with the failure of 
appeasement in Europe and outbreak of war on the continent.  The United States remained 
neutral through most of 1941, but after the attack on Pearl Harbor on December 7, 1941, the 
United States entered the war effort against the Axis Powers.  While the war waged around the 
world, people at home worked to provide supplies for the war effort.  The country needed war 
supplies and the NWSTC started a training program for metal work.  Students learned production 
process to help build up the U.S. arsenal.  The program started with two shifts but eventually had 
four shifts of student work.  The students received sixty hours of instruction from Valk, head of 
the manual training department, and one hundred hours of experience in machining.  This 
federally funded program reinvigorated the work force with skilled laborers.33   
 
 During World War II the STC, like many other institutions, faced declining enrollments, 
but the influx of navel cadets from the V-12 program helped the STC through the war years.  
Before the United States entered the global conflict, the Navy realized they would not have 
enough officers if the country entered the war.  As a measure of preparedness, they started the V-
7 program in June of 1940.  The program enlisted college juniors and seniors in the navy 
reserves and sent them to midshipmen’s school upon graduation.  The Navy also enrolled 
freshmen and sophomores in the V-1 program.  These students took a heavy course load of math, 
physical science, and physical training to prepare them for the Navy after graduation.  The STC 
also partnered with the Maryville School of Aeronautics that started 28 August 1940.  The 
program started as a civilian pilot training program but was taken over by the Army in December 
1941.  The military flight school opened July 13, 1942 with twenty students.  Students took 

                     
32 “Board of Regents report of the 55th General Assembly,”  The House and General Assembly Records: 

55th General Assembly, Sec 61, 56; “State Teachers College Biennial Report to the 52nd General Assembly,” The 
House and General Assembly Records: 52nd General Assembley, Sec 61, 6; “President Pleads for Support of 
Schools,” The Northwest Missourian, 4 June 1937, 1 & 3; “The Biennial Report of the Board of Regents to the 59th 
General Assembly,” The House and General Assembly Records: 59th General Assembly, Sec. 19, 12-13; “Starks 
signs Bill for Appropriations,” The Northwest Missourian, 8 July 1937, 1 & 8; “College to get New Building for its 
Training School,” The Northwest Missourian, 1 July 1937, 1; “College will Save Library Building Soon,” The 
Northwest Missourian, 7 July 1938, 1; “College may get fund for Library,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 25 April 
1938, 1; “Library plans are Completed,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 6 July 1938, 1; “Governor Stark to speak 
Saturday at dedication of college Buildings,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 3 October 1939, 1. 

33 “New youth program will be organized,” The Northwest Missourian, 10 April 1942, 1; “NYA has two 
full shifts going Now,” The Northwest Missourian, 2 October 1942, 1. 
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classes at the STC to prepare them for officer training after graduation from the aeronautics 
program. The partnership was short-lived with the Army ending the program in June 1943 
because they wanted to train pilots at larger locations.  Northwest took part in these programs, 
but this was not the college’s first experience working with a branch of the military.  During 
World War I, the Northwest Normal had taken part in an Army training program on campus.  
Military personal were shipped to Maryville and the fourth floor of the Administration Building 
was remodeled for barracks.  The program was canceled after a week because of the cease fire in 
Europe.34  The Northwest STC had worked with the government on a variety of military training 
programs, but they would all pale in comparison to what would come. 

 
After Roosevelt lowered the draft age from twenty-one to eighteen in 1942, the Navy 

realized they would need more commissioned officers.  To ensure sufficient officers, the Navy 
created the V-12 program.  The program enlisted men into a college training program 
administered by navel personal but housed and taught on college and university campuses.  In 
the spring of 1942 the Navy selected the Northwest State Teachers College and 130 other 
institutions as part of the V-12 program.  The students were on campus taking classes in the 
Administration Building for four terms or sixteen weeks.  The V-12 students took classes in 
math, English, history, physics, drawing, physical education, and navel drills with no electives.  
The program started on July 1, 1942 with nearly 400 men moving into the dorms on campus and 
displacing the other traditional college students.  The program was a success and many V-12 
students enjoyed their time at the STC.  In total, 2,010 Navel Cadets went through the V-12 
program at the NWSTC from its inception in 1943 to when it was decommissioned in October 
1945.  The V-12 program boosted Northwest’s enrollment of men at a time when the school was 
predominantly female and provided federal dollars to keep the school viable.35  The 
Administration Building symbolized educational growth in the effort on the home front for two 
world wars.    
  
 Although the world seemed in total disarray from 1929 to 1945, the STC worked 
diligently to maintain a sense of normalcy.  Through this period the STC continued to host the 
District Teachers meeting and the annual high school contests.  In 1932 with shrinking budgets 
for schools in the area, the STC hosted the high school contest with no entrance fees, but they 
did not offer lunch for the participants.  By 1937, the high school contest swelled to host over 
                     

34 Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 62; James G. Schneider, The Navy V-12 Program: Leadership for a life 
Time (Boston: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1987), 1-2; “Aviation comes to Nodaway County,” Tales of Nodaway 
County: A Book of Representative Stories and Unusual Tales (Maryville, Mo: The Society, 1977), 11; “Navel flight 
school here discontinued,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 12 May 1943, 1 & 6; “Navy explains ‘V’ program,” The 
Northwest Missourian, 17 April 1942, 3. 

35 James G. Schneider, The Navy V-12 Program, 2 & 497; “College selected for inspection as school for 
Navy,” The Northwest Missourian, 3 March 1943, 4; “Navy contingent to come about July 1 to College,” The 
Northwest Missourian, 12 May 1943, 1; “College selected for inspection as school for Navy,” The Maryville Daily 
Forum, 1 March 1943, 1; “Navy V-12 unit, started here on July 1, 1943, is being Discontinued,” The Northwest 
Missourian, 24 October 1945, 1. 
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two thousand participants.  During the war years the contests continued.  The 1945 spring 
contests were held in Maryville and at satellite locations in Gallatin and Excelsior Springs.  The 
District Teachers meetings hosted a thousand to fifteen hundred teachers every year and by 1947 
celebrated its thirtieth anniversary.  Most of the speakers scheduled for the District Teachers 
meetings were acclaimed school administrators from the region, but there were also many high 
profile presenters at these meetings.  The speakers ranged from the Secretary of Labor, Francis 
Perkins in 1936 to Amelia Earhart the first women to fly across the Atlantic, and Vilhjalmur 
Stefansson an arctic explorer.  However, the teacher training was not limited to the District 
Teachers meetings.  In 1933, the STC hosted a two day conference to train and increase the 
efficiency of school janitors in the areas of housekeeping, heating and ventilation, and general 
maintenance. Area Administrators also met regularly at the college to discuss current trends in 
education and observe how other schools deal with the changing conditions in the world.  After 
the war concluded, superintendents of the area met to discuss the needs and scope of education 
in the region.  The STC worked to bring in programs to improve the quality of education and 
offer activities for high school students in the region.36  
 

The NWSTC expanded their influence on education in the nineteen counties of 
Northwest Missouri during this same period.  By 1949, the local extension program was doing 
work at extension centers in thirteen counties and instructors traveled 23,000 miles a year to 
serve the students enrolled in the extension program.  The faculty of Northwest took a proactive 
role in the preparation of teachers.  The extension director, Miss Elizabeth White, visited 
graduates to observe them in their classrooms and used these observations to better prepare 
future graduates from the STC.  The faculty also worked closely with area schools to help them 
improve their programs and curriculum.  Dearborn, Missouri requested the faculty of the STC to 
observe the work done in the school as a whole and present their findings to the school board.  
The library at the STC attempted to help high school libraries of the area become more useful 
and efficient.  The librarians at the STC sent directions on preparation for cataloguing and a list 
of necessary reference material.  Then the librarians of the college went to the schools to 
catalogue their resources.  By 1930 the library had already assisted twenty local libraries in the 
district.  The STC coordinated outreach programs to improve the educational opportunities for 
students in the district, which amplified the recognition of the Administration Building as 
symbol for educational growth.37

                     
36 “Will hold Spring Contest in April,” The Northwest Missourian, 15 March 1932, 1; “Annual contests 

will be held at College in April,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 8 March 1932, 1; “College sponsors spring Contests,” 
The Northwest Missourian, 26 March 1945, 1; “Over 200 H.S. students taking part in spring Contests,” The 
Maryville Daily Forum, 23 April 1937, 1; “Twenty years ago STC started the Spring Contests for High Schools,” 
The Northwest Missourian, 27 April 1934, 2; “Famous Artic [sic] Explorer will come to STC,” The Northwest 
Missourian, 8 October 1930, 1; “Amelia Earhart tells of flight across Atlantic,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 17 
October 1933, 1; “Janitors School at Teachers College opens with Forty or More Men Attending,” The Maryville 
Daily Forum, 12 October 1933, 1 & 2; “Superintendents meet at College,” The Northwest Missourian, 21 February 
1946, 1. 

37 “In service training is being given,” The Northwest Missourian, 21 November 1946, 1; “Extension 



NPS Form 10-900-a            OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86) 

 
United States Department of the Interior 
National Park Service 
 
National Register of Historic Places 
Continuation Sheet 
 
Section number         8          Page          24                                         Administration Building  
                                                                                                                 Nodaway County, MO 
 

 
The Administration Building served as a central meeting location for student activities 

and for individuals in the community.  In 1928, the Alumni of the STC hosted state legislators to 
discuss issues of the day and their roles in Jefferson City.  The meeting continued biennially in 
December until 1942.  Faculty members also provided insight and perspective on the changing 
world during the 1930’s and 1940’s.  During the depression money was tight so the college held 
a four part lecture series during January of each winter for the general public.  The speakers 
lectured on the changes taking place in this country and around the world.  The college also 
hosted a series of events every year for farmers in the area. The experiment farm on campus 
served as a learning platform to improve the yields of farmers in the region.  The NWSTC was 
also selected as a member of the American Fine Arts Federation, and in 1942, the college 
exhibited a set of watercolors from a Polish artist who fled his country with the Nazi invasion.  
The Administration Building was also used by the community more directly.  The community 
held meetings in the library and auditorium, and in 1923, the American Legion used the gyms for 
a wrestling tournament. 38  

 
 When the war finally ended in 1945, the country tried to return to normalcy.  However, 
the country had to deal with the men returning from the war abroad.  The Servicemen’s 
Readjustment Act or the GI Bill was enacted by Congress in 1944 to help returning military 
personnel reenter American society.  The GI Bill provided tuition assistance so veterans could 
continue education or job training to help them reenter civilian life.  The bill was also meant to 
stem the inflow of service men back into the economy.  In two years it nearly doubled the 
number of students attending colleges and in its seven year history helped nearly eight million 
veterans further their education with about half a million attending college.  At the STC a 
Veterans Association program was established on campus (one of four in the area) to advise 
returning veterans on training in job fields.  The STC also asked the town to open their homes so 
the returning veterans had housing options if they chose to attend the STC after leaving the 
military.  With the swelling number of servicemen attending school, the STC moved in federal 

                                                                               
courses offer opportunities,” The Northwest Missourian, 14 December 1949, 1;  “STC follow-up work is going on 
successfully,” The Northwest Missourian, 24 March 1931, 1; “College group gives educational survey,” The 
Northwest Missourian, 1 January 1930, 4; “Librarians classify many Libraries,” The Northwest Missourian, 4 
February 1930, 1. 

38 “Legislators Guests of College Alumni,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 7 December 1936, 1 & 5; “College 
plays host to N.W. Missouri Legislators During 7th Annual Meeting,” The Northwest Missourian, 13 December 
1940, 1; “Legislators Visit College and Hear State Officials,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 9 December 1940, 1; 
“Legislators from College District Meet on Campus for Discussion,” The Northwest Missourian, 9 December 1942, 
1; “Series of Sunday lectures planned at college,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 28 January 1932, 4; “College 
Selected a Member of American Fine Art Federation,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 28 September 1942, 2; 
“Exhibition by Polish artist depicts Europe,” The Northwest Missourian, 30 September 1942, 1; “Farmers day at 
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Tribune, 1 April 1924, 2; Board of Regents Minutes: Book 2, 17 February 1923, 96.  
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barracks behind the Administration Building in 1946.39

 
 The Northwest Missouri State Teachers College faced an unsure future following the war 
but the problems to come were different than those of the previous two decades.  By 1944, 
Lamkin foresaw the effect of the GI Bill on education.  He proposed a ten year plan to expand 
the campus that would add several new classroom building, a student union, several residential 
hall facilities, and remodel the Administration Building.  The plan would ultimately come to 
fruition but would take over two decades and be spearheaded by the new President, Dr. John 
William Jones.  Jones took the reins of the STC in December 1945 and led the school to new 
heights as a standard four-year college.  The STC had expanded the degree programs ever since 
it rose to that role in 1919 but Lamkin could never convince the State Legislature to remove 
“teacher” from the school’s name.  However, the State Legislature finally renamed the 
Northwest Missouri State Teacher College, the Northwest Missouri State College in 1949 after 
years of pressure.40  
 
 Northwest Missouri State College (1949 – 1972)
 
 The Northwest Missouri State College expanded during this period faster than in any 
other period of its history.  To accommodate the growing number of students, the administration 
focused on the expansion of campus facilities.  The college added a series of dormitories and 
academic buildings to accommodate the increased number of students.  In an effort to shed the 
idea that it was still a teachers college, the administration also expanded the number of programs 
offered at the college.  The rapid expansion drastically changed the campus, forever changing the 
role of the Administration Building, but the iconic Collegiate-Gothic towers remained a symbol 
of education in northwest Missouri. 
 
 The increased enrollments started as men came back from war, but continued with the 
baby-boomer generation starting college.  During the 1960’s enrollment in higher education 
exploded because of a growing population of eighteen to twenty-one year-olds and more 
individuals choosing college than in previous generations.  From 1955 to 1960 enrollment 
increased thirty-five percent nationally.  By 1970, enrollment exploded, increasing 196 percent 
from 1955 enrollment numbers.  At Northwest enrollment exploded in the fifties, which helped 
the school grow faster than any other state college in Missouri.  From 1953 to 1959 enrollment 
increased nearly three hundred percent.  By 1956, the school already had problems with over 
crowding and enrollment was projected to double, to 2400 students over the next decade.  
Enrollment did double but sooner than expected, and the state college enrolled 2,415 students for 

                     
39 Clifford W. Cobb Responsive Schools, Renewed Communities (San Francisco: ICS Press, 1992), 141-

142; “Veteran’s Club men make survey for local town to locate among units,” The Northwest Missourian, 21 
February 1946, 1; “College is named Advisement Center,” The Northwest Missourian, 16 April 1945, 4; Dykes, 
Behind the Birches, 7. 

40 Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 99-105. 
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the 1962 fall semester.  The trend of astonishing growth continued through the decade and 
finally peaked in 1971 with a fall enrollment of 5,632.  Although, enrollment increased 
substantially during the period, Northwest still primarily focused on students in the nineteen 
county district.  In the fall of 1965 over fifty percent of students were from Missouri and forty-
five percent of these students were from the district. 41   
 
 The Northwest Missouri State College suffered from overcrowding like many other 
colleges and universities.  A federal commission on financing higher education concluded the 
physical plants and residential facilities at colleges had fallen behind the growth of enrollment by 
the 1960’s. The federal government and states would have to make a huge investment in capital 
improvement projects to allow higher education institutions to continue growing.  This started a 
scramble by colleges and universities for resources to expand their physical plants.  Northwest 
had always worked diligently to improve the campus but by the mid-fifties the college was in 
need of resources.  In 1956, President Jones followed the plan of Lamkin and requested money 
from the state to construct a science building, a fine arts building, dormitories, and remodel the 
Administration Building.  The money did not come immediately, but by 1958 four construction 
projects started on campus.42  Thus began two decades of constant construction, improvements, 
and expansion of the campus.  
 
 Throughout Northwest Missouri’s time as a college, the campus was in a constant state of 
change.  From 1958 to 1971, the school added twelve residence halls to accommodate the 
exploding student body.  Construction started with Perrin Hall, in 1958, and did not end until 
students moved into Millikan and Dieterich Halls in 1971.  President Jones also worked 
diligently to provide a meeting place for students.  The student union was started November 1, 
1950, completed on October 1, 1952 and renamed the J.W. Jones Student Union in 1956.  But by 
1962, the school’s growth prompted an addition of a combination dining room and ballroom.  
Dormitories and a union were a part of the construction done on campus, but the school also 
added a number of academic buildings.43

 
For over forty years a majority of student work was done in the Administration Building, 

                     
41 David D. Henry, Challenges Past, Challenges Present: An Analysis of American Higher Education Since 

1930 (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass Publishers, 1975), 101; Carol H. Shulman, Enrollment Trends in Higher 
Education (Washington: American Association for Higher Education, 1976), 7; Virgil Albertini and Dolores 
Albertini, Towers in the Northwest: A History of Northwest Missouri State University, 1956-1980 (Maryville, MO: 
Northwest Missouri State University, 1980), 17, 63, & 127; “State College need for Room Main Problem,” The 
Maryville Daily Forum, 19 January 1956, 1 & 2; “MSC fall classes get underway today,” The Maryville Daily 
Forum, 10 September 1962, 2. 

42 Henry, Challenges Past, Challenges Present, 91 & 107-108; “State College need for room main 
Problem,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 19 January 1956, 1 & 2; Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 
10. 

43 Dykes, Behind the Birches,  76-77; Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 117; “Work Starts on Union 
Building,” The Northwest Missourian, 14 February 1962, 3. 
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but that was soon to change.  Seven departments moved into the Classroom Building on May 1, 
1959.  The Classroom Building was renamed Colden Hall in 1961.  The completion of Colden 
Hall forever changed the roll of the Administration Building because it started the gradual shift 
in the function of the Administration Building.  There had been other academic buildings built 
on campus, but they were single use buildings and a majority of classes were still held in the 
Administration Building.  Other classroom buildings followed with the dedication of a new fine 
arts building in 1965 and a new math and science building in 1968.  Once the math and science 
departments vacated the Administration Building, the rooms were used to house a new Head 
Start Program on campus.  Then in 1970, Valk was completed to house the agriculture and 
manual training departments.  By the 1970’s, the Administration Building was still home to a 
few departments, but its primary function had forever been changed.44

 
 The Administration Building was also directly affected by the construction projects on 
campus.  During the early 1960’s the building underwent a series of improvements.  By the 
summer of 1961, all four floors had new permanent floor coverings.  The building was also 
reroofed with slate and the gutters replaced.  To improve the energy efficiency of the 
Administration Building, the college replaced all three hundred windows with aluminum clad 
windows and new exterior aluminum doors in 1966.  That same summer the auditorium was 
repainted and remodeled.  Then in 1968 a major remodel of the Administration Building started. 
 The plan was to increase office space in the building and move many of the administrative staff 
to the first and second floors of the building.  The auditorium was also improved by adding 
padded seats and carpeting the isles.45  The three phase improvement project of the 
Administration Building totally renovated the centerpiece of the campus. 
 
 The Administration Building also inspired the construction of another structure on 
campus.  In 1965, President Robert Foster announced a fund raising drive to build a one hundred 
foot bell tower.  It was constructed as a memorial to the casualties of war and former faculty and 
students.  The Bell Tower would be constructed in the same style as the Administration Building 
and when completed would resemble the towers.  The funding drive lasted five years and in July 
of 1970 construction of the tower started.  The tower was finally completed in September of 
1971; six years after Foster announced the start of the project.  By the 1970’s the towers of the 
Administration Building symbolized the college and the newly constructed Bell Tower only 
demonstrated its iconic image.46

                     
44 Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 105 & 118; Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 16, 64 & 

81; “NASA Executive to Dedicate Garrett-Strong Science Facility,” The Northwest Missourian, 10 May 1968, 1. 
45 “$692,958 MSC Improvements to Get Underway this Summer,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 18 July 

1961, 1 & 9; The Tower: 1963, 6 (Picture of slating roof); “Dr. Jones announces plan for Capital Improvements,” 
The Northwest Missourian, 26 July 1961, 1; “Windows, sidewalks, improve Main Building,” The Northwest 
Missourian,15 July 1966, 1; Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest,  82-83.  

46 “State College Announces Drive for $100,000 Memorial Tower,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 12 May 
1965, 1; “State College Announces Drive for $100,000 Memorial Tower,” The Northwest Missourian, 14 May 
1965, 3; “Bell Tower Plans Ready for Builder,” The Northwest Missourian, 17 July 1970, 1; “Completion of a 
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Northwest Missouri State College did not just expand the campus but also worked to 

expand the educational offerings during this time.  Although, a majority of students remained in 
the department of education, the number of majors increased rapidly.  In 1949, the college had 
ten basic emphases of study for a Bachelor of Science, Art, or Education degrees, but by 1972 
the Department of Agriculture alone offered ten degrees options.  The college also explored 
offering graduate degrees in 1955.  Just like the rest of the school’s history the graduate program 
started in the field of education and branched out to include other disciplines.  Although the 
program went through a long arduous process to receive accreditation, it allowed Northwest to 
offer a level of education previously unachievable for people to attain and still live in Northwest 
Missouri. 47

 
Building projects and expanding course offerings took up a majority of the 

administrations time, but the college kept up the tradition of offering entertainment and speakers 
on campus.  The Annual District Teachers meeting remained a mainstay of the fall schedule, and 
by 1972, the event celebrated fifty-five years of offering teaching workshops and prominent 
speakers.  In 1961, Walter Cronkite, a native of Saint Joseph, spoke in the Auditorium for the 
District Teachers meeting.  The events grew in size with 1200 to 1500 teachers expected for the 
forty-ninth meeting in 1966.  But the Teachers meetings were only part of the activities offered 
by the school to the surrounding communities.  The college also offered a number of activities 
for high school students.  The largest draw was Northwest Missouri State College’s Annual High 
School Contest, with over three thousand students competing in academic disciplines from 
agriculture to music, and athletic events in track and field.  Northwest Missouri State College 
also hosted a regional oratory meet in 1968.  Student winners from district competitions in 
Peoria, Illinois; West Branch, Iowa; and Rapid City, South Dakota came to Administration 
Building’s auditorium for the competition.48

 
The auditorium of the Administration Building hosted several special programs for 

students on campus and members of the surrounding community.  In 1959, Eleanor Roosevelt, 
the former First Lady, spoke on campus about the changing role of America in the world and the 
challenges of the Atomic Age.  Another special program offered by the college was “People 
                                                                               
Dream: MSC Bell Tower,” The Northwest Missourian, 24 September 1971, 4. 

47 General Catalogue 1948 – 1949 (Maryville, Missouri: Northwest Missouri State College, 1948); 
Brandon-Falcone, Transitions, 112; “College offers Work Toward M.S. Degree,” The Northwest Missourian, 15 
June 1955, 1; “NWMSC Graduate Program Accredited by N. Central,” The Northwest Missourian,  14 April 1967, 
1. 

48 “Walter Cronkite, Native NW Missourian, Tops Teacher Meeting Program,” The Maryville Daily 
Forum, 9 October 1961, 3; “Expect 1200 to 1500 teachers here Friday for 49th Annual meet,” The Maryville Daily 
Forum, 6 October 1966, 1; “First of 3,000 high school students to MSC contests,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 3 
April 1968, 4; “MSC to host Regional Legion Oratorical meet,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 3 April 1968, 4; 
“NWMSC holds cheerleading clinic June 19-23,” The Northwest Missourian, 28 June 1961, 1; “First basketball 
clinic held on campus,” The Northwest Missourian, 16 November 1960, 4. 
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Week.”  One week in April of 1970, five nationally renowned speakers came to campus for a 
lecture series.  The speakers included Father James Groppi, a civil rights leader; Peter Weaver, 
business and consumer magazine writer; Karl Hess, speech writer for Barry Goldwater; Jerry 
Mays, a football player with the Kansas City Chiefs; and Ralph Nader, a consumer rights 
advocate.  These are some highlights, but the auditorium hosted a variety of programs from 
acclaimed musicians to national stage acts. 49

 
From 1949 to 1972, the Northwest Missouri State College went through many changes.  

The student body grew faster than in any other time of the schools history, which forced the 
administration to added dormitories, new classroom buildings, and remodel the buildings already 
on the campus.  The Administration Building still housed some classrooms but a majority of 
departments moved to other buildings.  However, this allowed the Administration to centralize 
offices in a single building.  Northwest Missouri State College looked to the future with a 
remodeled campus and plans of expanding education opportunities.   
 
 Northwest Missouri State University (1972-Present)  
 
 On 21 April 1972, Northwest Missouri State College made its final name change to 
Northwest Missouri State University (NWMSU), when Governor Warren Hearnes signed a bill 
renaming the institution.50  As a university, Northwest continued to improve the campus for the 
students and the community. However, the campus was forever changed 24 July 1979, when a 
fire extensively damaged the Administration Building.  President B.D. Owens turned the disaster 
into a positive, using 13.8 million dollars appropriated by the state to rebuild the Administration 
Building and construct several new buildings on campus.  The university arose from the ashes of 
the Administration Building with a modern campus ready for the future.  
 

As part of the campus improvement project the Administration Building underwent a 
major three phase remodel and restoration project in the 1970s.  The improvements were meant 
to update the building and make it more energy efficient.  Although, plans for a major renovation 
project started in 1973, work on Phase I began 1 July 1976.  Phase I focused on cleaning the 
basement, remodeling the agriculture department, installing an elevator, repairing loose shingles 
and bricks, and replacing windows.  Phase II started in the fall of 1976, with the goal of 
improving the facilities of both the speech and theater department and the broadcasting 
department.  The speech and theater department retained classrooms on the third floor, but 
fourteen offices were constructed on the fourth floor, along with a state of the art speech and 
hearing clinic.  Rooms vacated on the third floor by the speech and theater department were 
converted into studios and an editing room for the campus television station.  The instructional 
                     

49 “Mrs. Roosevelt hopes Young People Understand World, Challenge of Atomic Age,” The Maryville 
Daily Forum, 14 February 1959, 1 & 2; “Union Board plans People Week geared to insight, involvement,” The 
Northwest Missourian, 3 April 1970, 1; Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 104-105. 

50 Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 136. 
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television, or ITV, was also moved from Wells Library to the third floor of the Administration 
Building.  With the goal of improving communication of administrative offices, Phase III 
commenced during the summer of 1977.  The Admissions office and the Registrar’s office were 
moved to the second floor adjacent to Student Financial Affairs.  President B.D. Owens and the 
assistant to the President’s office were displaced by the construction and resided in a trailer 
during this phase of renovations.  Eventually, the President’s Office was moved to the first floor 
along with the offices of vice president for academic affairs, the alumni office, and the news and 
information offices.  The remaining project, as part of Phase III, was the remodel of the 
auditorium.  The entire renovation project further fixed the existing heating system, by replacing 
corroded pipes, and extended an air conditioning system to encompass the entire building.  The 
extensive renovation project improved the efficiency of the building, but with only seventy 
percent of the project complete, disaster struck.51    
 
 On 24 July 1979, Maryville Public Safety was called to a fire at 8:14 pm in the 
Administration Building.  A passer-by witnessed smoke and flames coming from the roof of the 
west wing, and immediately called Maryville public safety.  They arrived on scene to find a fire 
in the attic of the building and called other area fire departments to help extinguish the flames.  
In total about one hundred fifty people from six area fire departments helped squelch the flames. 
 At around two o’clock the next morning the major fire was extinguished, but it took another two 
hours before the fire was completely squelched.  Once extinguished, Northwest Missouri State 
University and the people of Maryville began to cope with the disaster.52

 
 The fire destroyed the third and fourth floors of the west wing, and collapsed the roof of 
the partially renovated Frank Deerwester Theater.  The rest of the building suffered from varying 
degrees of smoke, heat, and water damage.  It was later found that the fire started on the fourth 
floor over the radio station studio, but the damage destroyed most of the evidence of a cause.  
The following day Owens said, “[t]he University had a great suffering last night.  The 
Administration Building is the heart of the campus and the heart of the University.”  The same 
sentiment was echoed by most of the crowd that gathered around the building during the fire.   
One onlooker said, “It was a symbol of a part of my life, and it was going up in smoke,” and 
another individual said, “It was kind of like seeing your own house burn.”  But Owens refused to 
fall into the trap of negativity and held a meeting the following day, announcing that, “it is not a 
                     

51 Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 166, 190, 200, 216, 222, & 235; “Three Campus 
Building to Undergo Major Construction Changes,” The Northwest Missourian, 7 September 1973, 6; “Campus 
Renovation funds from State Legislature,” The Northwest Missourian, 22 February 1974, 1; “$183,000 
Appropriations for Improvements,” The Northwest Missourian, 11 June 1976, 1; “Ad Building has a New Look – 
Renovation Still in Progress,” The Northwest Missourian, 11 February 1977, 3; “Media Center Remodeled in Ad 
Building,” The Northwest Missourian, 4 March 1977, 1; “Ad Offices on the Move,” The Northwest Missourian, 21 
April 1978, 1;  “Phase III Ends Facelift,” The Tower: 1979, 79. 

52 Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 238; “Fireman Battle Blaze: West Wing Destroyed,” 
The Northwest Missourian. 27 July 1979, 1 & 6; & Cindy Sedler, Bob Power, and Carol Crum, “Burning 
Memories,” The Towers: 1980, 25. 
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tragedy, just a disaster, and everything is business as usual.”53

 
 Clean up started immediately with the help of community organizers and twenty 
thousand dollars from a state emergency appropriations bill. At the same time, Owens and the 
Board of Regents discussed how the school would move forward.  The state self insured the 
Administration Building, so any rebuilding projects would have to be funded by the State 
Legislature.  After a consultation from Homer Williams, a Kansas City architect, Owens 
proposed the adoption of a new campus plan. Reconstruction of the Administration Building 
would cost roughly fifteen million dollars, but instead the Board of Regents asked the state for 
13.8 million dollars for an entire campus remodel.  1.58 million dollars went to the 
reconstruction and renovation of the first three floors of Administration Building (excepting the 
third floor of the east wing that suffered from minimal fire damage), and the roof line of the west 
wing would be rebuilt to its original appearance.  The plan further proposed the construction of  
a 7.4 million dollar, 100,000 square foot library; a $477,000 remodel of Wells Hall, the current 
library, for classroom space; a 2.97 million dollar theater to replace the Frank Deerwester 
Theater; and 1.8 million dollars for incidental nonstructural damage caused by the fire.  On 3 
January 1980, Kenneth Rothman, speaker of the Missouri House of Representatives, visited the 
Northwest Missouri State University campus, and the following day Governor Teasdale came to 
the campus.  Owens presented them both with a sales pitch that the proposed 13.8 million dollars 
would not only help the University overcome the disaster, but would propel the campus into the 
future.  Teasdale and Rothman left Northwest Missouri State University impressed with Owens 
and his plan, pledging to help the school receive the necessary emergency appropriations.54

  
A year after the fire, the Administration Building still stood empty, but work was 

underway to reconstruct the building and reshape the campus. Governor Teasdale signed House 
Bill 1014, the emergency appropriations bill, on 24 March 1980.  Owens and Northwest began 
accepting bids for the 13.8 million dollar reconstruction project during that summer with plans to 
start construction that fall.  By the fall of 1980, work on the Administration Building was well 
under way.  A truss system was constructed and a slate roof installed over the west wing so the 
building looked exactly like it did before the fire.  Once enclosed, new heating and cooling duct 
work was installed throughout the building.  Some of the stone cleared from the collapsed Frank 
Deerwester Theater was used in the construction of the new theater and the remaining walls of 
the theater were used to house the new heating and air conditioning system for the building.  
With work still progressing in the Administration Building, the Home Economics department 

                     
53 Carol Crum & Bob Power, “West wing destroyed,” The Northwest Missourian, 27 July 1979, 1; Cindy 

Sedler, Bob Power, and Carol Crum, “Burning Memories,” The Tower: 1980, 26-27. 
54 Judith Rosenburg, “$20,000 Approved,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 1 August 1979, 1; Brandon-

Falcone, Transitions, 159; Homer L. Williams, Letter from Homer L. Williams, AIA, of Architects Design 
Collaborative, Inc. to B.D. Owens, 22 October 1979; Suzie Zillner, “Board of Regents meets: recovery options 
discussed,” The Northwest Missourian, 30 November 1979, 1 & 3; “Teasdale, Rothman back funding,” The 
Northwest Missourian, 25 January 1980, 1 & 2; Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 245. 
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moved back into the building in October of 1981.  The other departments displaced by the fire 
took-up residence on the third floor of the J.W. Jones Union and the administrative offices were 
moved into the high rise dorms.  Work on the building progressed through the winter and into 
the summer.  University offices and departments moved back into the building by the end of the 
summer. On 28 August 1981, the University held a rededication ceremony to mark the 
completion of the massive reconstruction project on the Administration Building.  State officials, 
University officials, and local citizens gathered in front of the Administration Building to 
celebrate the completion of part of the reconstruction project.  Lieutenant Governor Kenneth 
Rothman spoke at the celebration, saying, “It was enough to break your heart to see what was 
left of one of the most magnificent architectural structures in the state of Missouri.”  But now the 
Administration Building was rebuilt and looked much like it had before the fire.55  The other 
construction projects progressed on schedule.  With Owens foresight and determination, the 
University used the disaster of the Administration Building fire to renovate the campus.  In 1984, 
as construction slowed, Owens announced that he was leaving his alma mater. 
 
 Northwest Missouri State University hired Dr. Dean Hubbard as the new President of the 
University.  In the 1990s Hubbard and the Board of Regents thought the campus needed another 
facelift.  The Administration Building underwent a $2.2 million renovation in the nineties.  The 
internal renovation focused on improving the office space for administrative departments on the 
second floor and moving offices onto the third floor.  The renovation of the Administration 
Building started during the fall of 1995 and was completed by the fall of 1997.  The remodel 
moved offices and even corrected problems left from the reconstruction project after the 1979 
fire.  Work on the second floor was extensive and the financial aid office and the Registrar’s 
office were moved to Thompson-Ringold for part of the renovation.  When the project was 
completed the Career Service department was moved to the first floor and the News and 
Information office moved to the second floor.  The Vice President’s office was moved to the east 
wing of the second floor, and the remodel centralized the three college deans and the dean of 
graduate studies in the west wing of the second floor.  A tutoring program called the Talent 
Development Center was moved from Wells Hall to the third floor of the building.  The 
renovation project modernized the interior of the Administration Building and was the last major 
change to the interior of exterior of the building.56

 
                     

55 Albertini and Albertini, Towers in the Northwest, 245; “Appropriations: Emergency and supplemental 
purposes,” Laws of Missouri: 1980: 80th General Assembly, House Bill No. 1014, Sect 14.005, 198; “A look at the 
Ad Building,” The Northwest Missourian, 25 July 1980, 4; “Everything on schedule: Regents focus on 
construction,” The Northwest Missourian, 14 November 1980, 1; “Construction projects on schedule; some near 
completion,” The Northwest Missourian, 23 October 1981, 1; “Administration moves,” The Northwest Missourian, 
20 June 1980, 2; “Building today for tomorrow,” The Tower: 1982, 52-53; “Rothman to speak at Northwest 
dedication,” The Maryville Daily Forum, 16 August 1982, 1; & “Ad Building rededicated in ceremony,” The 
Maryville Daily Forum, 30 August 1982, 1. 

56 Jennifer Simler and Nate Olson, “Renovations for the Future,” The Tower: 1997, 49-50; Rudy Dittmer, 
“Relocating for extensive Renovations,” The Tower: 1996, 87-89. 
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 The Administration Building is the oldest building on the Northwest Missouri State 
campus built by the state of Missouri.  The building started as a dream for those in Maryville, 
who saw the Fifth District Normal School as a center in the region for education.  When the 
building was finally constructed, it served as the heart of all campus activities and even as 
another meeting place for the citizens of Maryville.  As the school grew, the function of the 
building changed to the center of campus administration.  But throughout the building’s various 
renovations and even disasters, the Administration Building was still used by the school and still 
at the center of all campus life.  To the city and the region, the Administration Building became 
an iconic representation of the University, which symbolized economic development, access to 
higher education, raised culture, and University and community collaboration.  For many in 
Northwest Missouri, the Administration Building is the centerpiece and symbol for an ever 
changing and growing campus. 
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Verbal Boundary Description

 
 The Administration Building is in the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter and the 
Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter in Section 18 Township 64 Range 35 West.  The 
boundary starts at the intersection of the sidewalk and University Drive labeled as the “Point of 
Beginning”; the boundary thence runs south along University Drive approximately 357’ to an 
intersection of a sidewalk and the street; thence the property runs south west along the sidewalk 
approximately 93’ to a sidewalk running parallel to the south façade of the Administration 
Building, thence along sidewalk approximately 192’ to a curve in the sidewalk; thence southwest 
43’ to an intersection of the sidewalk that runs along the west wing of the building; thence 
northwest along the sidewalk 390’ to the intersection of the sidewalk north of the building and 
adjacent to the parking long; then along the sidewalk 400’ and then making slight curve and 
following the sidewalk approximately 86’ feet back to the “Point of Beginning.”  (See scale map 
on p. 40.) 

 
 
 

Boundary Justification 
  
 The boundary encompasses the entire original foot print of the building and part of the 
original grounds.  It follows sidewalks and streets that currently encompass the building.  
However, the boundary does not include any of the buildings that have been added since 
construction started on the Administration Building in 1907. Although the other buildings 
constructed on campus changed the building’s function; the Administration Building stands as 
the focal point of the campus.       
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Photographic Documentation 
 

Photographer:  Jason Williamson 
 Maryville, Missouri 
 
Date of Photographs: December 2009 and April 2010 
 
Location of Digital Photographs on CD-ROM: Missouri State Historic Preservation Office 
 Jefferson City, Missouri 
 
Photograph 

Number 
Description Camera View 

1. Southeast (Primary) Façade Northwest 
2. Northwest side; Rear of building Southeast 
3. Southwest side of West Wing Northeast 
4. Southern corner of Building showing the Southeast façade and 

Southwest sides of the building 
Northeast 

5. Copula on the southern half of the roof of the West Wing  Northeast 
6. Northeastern side of East Wing Southwest 
7. Northern Corner of Building showing the Northwestern and 

Northeastern side of the building 
Southwest 

8. Northeastern corner of old theater, showing the new hip roof Southwest 
9. Southeast (primary) Façade focused solely on the center 

gatehouse feature. 
Northwest 

10. Interior: first floor from the center of the main hall facing west 
entrance 

Southwest 

11. Interior: first floor from the center of the main hall facing east 
entrance 

Northeast 

12. Interior: top of stair case on the second floor overlooking the 
landing 

Southeast 

13. Interior: second floor hallway from center facing the west wing. Southwest 
14. Interior: third floor of east wing  Northwest 
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Floor Plans & Photo Log/Key 
               

Photo 10 

Photo 11 
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Photo 14 





1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14


	Section 7
	Section 8
	Section 9
	Photo log
	Photos



